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File No. TRS-97-45
Applicant: Minnesota Department of
Public Service
State of Minnesota
For further information, contact Al
McCloud, (202) 418—-2499,
amccloud@fcc.gov, or Andy Firth, (202)
418-2224 (TTY), afirth@fcc.gov, at the
Network Services Division, Common
Carrier Bureau, Federal
Communications Commission.

Federal Communications Commission.
William F. Caton,

Acting Secretary.

[FR Doc. 97-26877 Filed 10-9-97; 8:45 am]
BILLING CODE 6712-01-P

FEDERAL COMMUNICATIONS
COMMISSION

Public Information Collection
Approved by Office of Management
and Budget

October 3, 1997.

The Federal Communications
Commission (FCC) has received Office
of Management and Budget (OMB)
approval for the following public
information collection pursuant to the
Paperwork Reduction Act of 1995,
Public Law 96-511. An agency may not
conduct or sponsor a collection of
information unless it displays a
currently valid control number. Not
withstanding any other provisions of
law, no person shall be subject to any
penalty for failing to comply with a
collection of information subject to the
Paperwork Reduction Act (PRA) that
does not display a valid control number.
Questions concerning the OMB control
numbers and expiration dates should be
directed to Judy Boley, Federal
Communications Commission, (202)
418-0214.

Federal Communications Commission

OMB Control No.: 3060-0783.

Expiration Date: 9/30/2000.

Title: Coordination Notification
Requirements on Frequencies Below
512 MHz—Section 90.176.

Form No.: N/A.

Estimated Annual Burden: 975 annual
hour; average .25 hours per response. 15
respondents reply daily for 3,900 annual
responses.

Description: Section 90.176 requires
each Private Land Mobile frequency
coordinator to provide within one
business day, a listing of their frequency
recommendations to all other frequency
coordinators in their respective pool,
and, if requested, an engineering
anaylsis. They must provide the
applicant name, frequency or
frequencies recommended; antenna

locations and heights; the effective
radiated power; the emission types;
service area description and the date
and time of the recommendation. The
requirement is necessary to avoid
situations where harmful interference is
created because two or more
coordinators recommend the same
frequency in the same area at
approximately the same time to
different applicants.

OMB Control No.: 3060-0795.

Expiration Date: 12/31/1997.

Title: Universal Licensing System
(ULS) Taxypayer Identification Number
(TIN) Registration.

Form No.: FCC 606.

Estimated Annual Burden: 411,000
annual hours; 1 hour per respondent;
411,000 respondents.

Description: FCC Form 606 will be
used by each licensee to provide WTB
with their TIN and a list of their call
signs to populate the ULS and establish
a unique sequential number for each
licensee. WTB will issue a services of
public notices stating our intentions and
request that each licensee provide their
TIN. This will be done gradually by
radio service, until all existing licensees
have been notified.

Federal Communications Commission.
William F. Caton,

Acting Secretary.

[FR Doc. 97-26875 Filed 10-9-97; 8:45 am]
BILLING CODE 6712-01-F

FEDERAL MARITIME COMMISSION
[Docket No. 97-17]

Portman Square Limited—Possible
Violations of Section 10(a)(1) of the
Shipping Act of 1984; Order of
Investigation and Hearing

Portman Square Limited (‘‘Portman
Square”) is a tariffed and bonded non-
vessel-operating common carrier
(““NVOCC"), located at Sixth Floor,
Silver Tech Tower, 26 Cheung Lee
Street, Chiwan, Hong Kong. Portman
Square holds itself out as a NVOCC
pursuant to its ATFI tariff FMC-001,
filed January 29, 1996. Emerson Li, a
resident of Hong Kong, is reported to be
Managing Director of Portman Square.

Portman Square currently maintains a
NVOCC bond, No. 102229, in the
amount of $50,000 with the Intercargo
Insurance Company, 1450 East
American Lane, 20th Floor,
Schaumburg, Illinois 60173. Pursuant to
Rule 24 of Portman Square’s tariff,
Distribution Publications, Inc., 7996
Capwell Drive, Oakland, California,
serves as the U.S. resident agent for
service of process.

It appears that in at least forty-one
(41) instances occurring between
January 10, 1997 and March 11, 1997,
Portman Square obtained transportation
on Hyundai Merchant Marine Co. Ltd.
(“Hyundai”) vessels by accessing a
service contract allegedly entered into
by Take Ace Co. Ltd. (““Take Ace”). Take
Ace executed Hyundai SC No. 96-5343
on April 24, 1996, and certified to
Hyundai that it was the cargo owner.1
There is no indication, however, that
the service contract has been utilized at
any time for the transportation of goods
in which Take Act retains any beneficial
interest.2

From documents obtained from U.S.
consignees, it appears Portman Square
is in fact the real shipper and party for
whose account the ocean transportation
was provided. During the period May
1996 through April 1997, over 230
shipments were transported by Hyundai
pursuant to service contract No. 96—
5343. All of these shipments are
believed to have originated with
Portman Square, and were handled in
the United States by the NVOCC’s
regular destination agents. In each of the
above shipments, Portman Square
issued its own NVOCC or *“*house” bill
of lading, and thus had a direct role in
a scheme of misdescribing the
commodity to the transporting ocean
common carrier. These shipments
originated in Hong Kong and the
People’s Republic of China, and were
destined primarily for Los Angeles and
New York for delivery through Portman
Square’s U.S. agents.

In each of the 41 instances cited
herein, the commodity was described to
the ocean common carrier as
“kitchenware”, “lighting fixture”,
“patio furniture”, or “KD furniture”.
Other contemporaneous documentation,
such as house bills of lading, arrival
notices, and U.S. Customs entry
documentation prepared by the
customhouse broker, reflect that
Portman Square was fully cognizant that
the shipments actually consisted of
footwear, computer parts, sunglasses,
plastic flatware, polystone figurines,
clocks, and used household goods.
Portman Square or its agents
nonetheless made payment to the ocean
common carrier on the basis of the
inaccurate commodity shown and
declared on the bill of lading when
issued.

1The Commission’s service contract records
reflect that Emerson Li executed the Hyundai
service contract on behalf of Take Ace.

2|n fact, the Journal of Commerce PIERS database
reports that no shipments were recorded on behalf
of shipper Take Ace prior to May 1996 nor
subsequent to the expiration of Hyundai’s service
contract on April 30, 1997.
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Section 10(a)(1) of the Shipping Act of
1984 (*1984 Act™), 46 U.S.C. app.
§1709(a)(1), prohibits any person
knowingly and willfully, directly or
indirectly, by means of false billing,
false classification, false weighing, false
report of weight, false measurement, or
by any other unjust or unfair device or
means, to obtain or attempt to obtain
ocean transportation for property at less
than the rates or charges that would
otherwise be applicable. Under section
13 of the 1984 Act, 46 U.S.C. app.
§1712, a person is subject to a civil
penalty of not more than $25,000 for
each violation knowingly and willfully
committed, and not more than $5,000
for other violations.3 Section 23 of the
1984 Act, 46 U.S.C. app. § 1721 further
provides that a common carrier’s tariff
may be suspended for a period not to
exceed one year for violations of section
10(a)(1) of the 1984 Act.

Now therefore, it is ordered, That
pursuant to sections 10, 11, 13, and 23
of the 1984 Act, 46 U.S.C. app. 881709,
1710, 1712, and 1721, an investment is
instituted to determine:

(1) Whether Portman Square Limited
violated section 10(a)(1) of the 1984 Act
by directly or indirectly obtaining
transportation at less than the rates and
charges otherwise applicable through
the means of misdescription of the
commodities actually shipped;

(2) Whether, in the event violations of
section 10(a)(1) of the 1984 Act are
found, civil penalties should be
assessed against Portman Square
Limited and, if so, the amount of
penalties to be assessed;

(3) Whether, in the event violations of
section 10(a)(1) of the 1984 Act are
found, the tariff of Portman Square
Limited should be suspended; and

(4) Whether, in the event violations
are found, an appropriate cease and
desist order should be issued.

It is further ordered, That a public
hearing be held in this proceeding and
that this matter be assigned for hearing
before an Administrative Law Judge of
the Commission’s Office of
Administrative Law Judges at a date and
place to be hereafter determined by the
Administrative Law Judge in
compliance with Rule 61 of the
Commission’s Rules of Practice and
Procedure, 46 CFR 502.61. The hearing
shall include oral testimony and cross-
examination in the discretion of the
Presiding Administrative Law Judge
only after consideration has been given
by the parties and the Presiding

3These penalties are increased 10 percent for any
violations occurring after November 7, 1996. See,
Inflation Adjustment of Civil Penalties, 61 Fed. Reg.
52704 (October 8, 1996).

Administrative Law Judge to the use of
alternative forms of dispute resolution,
and upon a proper showing that there
are genuine issues of material fact that
cannot be resolved on the basis of sworn
statements, affidavits, depositions, or
other documents or that the nature of
the matters in issue is such that an oral
hearing and cross-examination are
necessary for the development of an
adequate record;

It is further ordered, That Portman
Square Limited is designated a
Respondent in this proceeding;

It is further ordered, That the
Commission’s Bureau of Enforcement is
designated a party to this proceeding;

It is further ordered, That notice of
this Order be published in the Federal
Register, and a copy be served on parties
of record;

It is further ordered, That other
persons having an interest in
participating in this proceeding may file
petitions for leave to intervene in
accordance with Rule 72 of the
Commission’s Rules of Practice and
Procedure, 46 CFR 502.72;

It is further ordered, That all further
notices, orders, and/or decisions issued
by or on behalf of the Commission in
this proceeding, including notice of the
time and place of hearing or prehearing
conference, shall be served on parties of
record;

It is further ordered, That all
documents submitted by any party of
record in this proceeding shall be
directed to the Secretary, Federal
Maritime Commission, Washington,
D.C. 20573, in accordance with Rule 118
of the Commission’s Rules of Practice
and Procedure, 46 CFR 502.118, and
shall be served on parties of record; and

It is further ordered, That in
accordance with Rule 61 of the
Commission’s Rules of Practice and
Procedure, the initial decision of the
Administrative Law Judge shall be
issued by October 5, 1998 and the final
decision of the Commission shall be
issued by February 2, 1999.

By the Commission.
Joseph C. Polking,
Secretary.
[FR Doc. 97-26976 Filed 10-9-97; 8:45 am]
BILLING CODE 6730-01-M

FEDERAL RESERVE SYSTEM

Change in Bank Control Notices;
Acquisitions of Shares of Banks or
Bank Holding Companies

The notificants listed below have
applied under the Change in Bank
Control Act (12 U.S.C. 1817(j)) and §

225.41 of the Board’s Regulation Y (12
CFR 225.41) to acquire a bank or bank
holding company. The factors that are
considered in acting on the notices are
set forth in paragraph 7 of the Act (12
U.S.C. 1817(j)(7)).

The notices are available for
immediate inspection at the Federal
Reserve Bank indicated. The notices
also will be available for inspection at
the offices of the Board of Governors.
Interested persons may express their
views in writing to the Reserve Bank
indicated for that notice or to the offices
of the Board of Governors. Comments
must be received not later than October
28, 1997.

A. Federal Reserve Bank of Dallas
(Genie D. Short, Vice President) 2200
North Pearl Street, Dallas, Texas 75201-
2272:

1. Smith Mustang Ltd., Rio Vista,
Texas; Lowell Smith, Jr., General
Partner; to acquire voting shares of
Mustang Financial Corporation, Rio
Vista, Texas, and thereby indirectly
acquire First State Bank of Rio Vista, Rio
Vista, Texas.

Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve
System, October 7, 1997.

William W. Wiles,

Secretary of the Board.

[FR Doc. 97-27029 Filed 10-9-97; 8:45 am]
BILLING CODE 6210-01-F

FEDERAL RESERVE SYSTEM

Formations of, Acquisitions by, and
Mergers of Bank Holding Companies

The companies listed in this notice
have applied to the Board for approval,
pursuant to the Bank Holding Company
Act of 1956 (12 U.S.C. 1841 et seq.)
(BHC Act), Regulation Y (12 CFR Part
225), and all other applicable statutes
and regulations to become a bank
holding company and/or to acquire the
assets or the ownership of, control of, or
the power to vote shares of a bank or
bank holding company and all of the
banks and nonbanking companies
owned by the bank holding company,
including the companies listed below.

The applications listed below, as well
as other related filings required by the
Board, are available for immediate
inspection at the Federal Reserve Bank
indicated. The application also will be
available for inspection at the offices of
the Board of Governors. Interested
persons may express their views in
writing on the standards enumerated in
the BHC Act (12 U.S.C. 1842(c)). If the
proposal also involves the acquisition of
a nonbanking company, the review also
includes whether the acquisition of the
nonbanking company complies with the
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